
 

 

RIVERSIDE COUNTY 
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT ADVISORY COUNCIL 

(COUNTYWIDE LOCAL TASK FORCE) 
 

AGENDA 
 

Thursday 
September 18, 2014 

1:00 p.m. 
 

12:30 p.m. – Lunch Served to Members 
 

Riverside County 
Waste Management Department 

14310 Frederick Street 
Moreno Valley, CA  92553 

 
ITEM PAGE 

1. CALL TO ORDER AND INTRODUCTIONS 
 

2. PRESENTATION TO CHUCK TOBIN 
 

3. COMMENTS FROM LTF MEMBERS 
 

4. APPROVAL OF FEBRUARY 20, 2014 MINUTES …………………………………………. 1 - 6 
 

5. STAFF PRESENTATIONS 
 

A. Local Enforcement Agency Overview 
 

6. DISCUSSION ITEMS 

A. Assembly Bill 1826 (Chesbro) Organics Management………………………………. 7 - 18 

B. Assembly Bill 1594 (Williams) Alternative Daily Cover…………………………….. 19 - 29 
 

7. ACTION ITEMS 
 

A. Adoption of Recommendations for Compost Best Management Practices  
and/or Conditions of Approval from the Compost Subcommittee……………… 30 
 

8. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

9. ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

10. ADJOURNMENT 

NOTE:  The Advisory Council may take action on any of the published agenda items. Non-exempt 
materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to the Solid Waste Management Advisory Council 
(Countywide Local Task Force) after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection at 
the Waste Management Department during normal business hours.  Such documents are also available on 
the Waste Management Department’s website at www.rivcowm.org subject to staff’s ability to post the 
documents before the meeting. 

http://www.rivcowm.org/


 

 

 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act and Government Code Section 54954.2, if special 
assistance is needed to participate in a Committee meeting, please contact the Riverside County Waste 
Management Department (951) 486-3200.  Notification of at least 48 hours prior to meeting time will assist 
staff in assuring that reasonable arrangements can be made to provide accessibility at the meeting.  



 

1 
 

RIVERSIDE COUNTY 

SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT ADVISORY COUNCIL 

(COUNTYWIDE LOCAL TASK FORCE) 

 

Minutes 

 

February 20, 2014 

 
 
MEMBERS      MEMBERS 

PRESENT  REPRESENTING   ABSENT  REPRESENTING 

 

Sup. Marion Ashley County Sup. 5th District Richard Schmidt Agriculture 
Simon Housman County Sup. 4th District  Tom Freeman  Riverside Co. EDA 
Robert Lemon  City of Moreno Valley Russell Keenan Engineering 
Steve Wilkinson City of Corona  Katie Barrows  Environmental Community  
Bruce Scott  Agriculture   Patrick Richardson City of Temecula  
Frankie Riddle  CVAG     
Mike Gardner  City of Riverside   
Miguel Arciniega County Sup. 5th District STAFF 

Ella Zanowic  WRCOG    
Ed Campos  IEDA    Greg Reyes  Environmental Health/LEA 
Jordan Ehrenkranz WRCOG   Jeff Johnson  Environmental Health/LEA 
Russell Keenan Engineering   Barry Bush  5th Supervisorial Dist. 
Bob Magee  County Sup. 1st District Hans Kernkamp Waste Management Dept. 
Robert Moran  EDA    Joe McCann  Waste Management Dept. 
       Angela Dufresne Waste Management Dept. 
ALTERNATES     Ryan Ross  Waste Management Dept. 
       Sung Key Ma  Waste Management Dept. 
Dale West   City of Temecula  Janet Moreland Waste Management Dept. 
Chris Cunningham IEDA     
Steven Bayard  County Sup. 4th District  
 
GUESTS       

 
Jeff Smith  City of Riverside   
Rob Mucha  El Sobrante COC   
Amie Kinnie  El Sobrante COC   
Joanne Lee  RWQCB    
Alex Braicovich CR&R     
Kurt Schoppe  SA Recycling/ISRI   
Damon DeFrates WMI   
Gary Koontz  Burrtec    
Dan Noble  IEDA/ACP    
Jennifer DiCiano WRCOG    
David Davis  MSW Consultants   
AGENDA ITEM 1 



 

2 
 

CALL TO ORDER AND INTRODUCTIONS 

 
The meeting was called to order at 1:06 p.m. by Supervisor Marion Ashley, with self-
introductions, and then turned over to Vice-Chairperson Simon Housman.  
 
AGENDA ITEM 2  
COMMENTS FROM LTF MEMBERS  
  
Bob Magee requested that at the next meeting, the Environmental Health Department provide a 
presentation explaining their role as Local Enforcement Agency (LEA). 
 
Hans Kernkamp advised that Chuck Tobin (Inland Empire Disposal Association), a long time 
LTF member, will be resigning.  The LTF agreed to present Chuck Tobin with a plaque at an 
upcoming meeting. 
  
AGENDA ITEM 3 

APPROVAL OF APRIL 18, 2013 MINUTES 

 
Simon Housman summoned a motion to approve the meeting minutes for April 18, 2013, as 
presented. On the motion of Ella Zanowic, second by Rob Moran, the minutes were approved as 
submitted.  
 
AGENDA ITEM 4  

STAFF PRESENTATIONS 

 

A. Compost Best Management Practices (BMPs) and Financial Assurances 

 
Ryan Ross discussed the compost BMPs and financial assurances.  He stated the BMPs were a 
result of the Board of Supervisors direction to County staff to ensure that future composting 
operations will not negatively impact local residents and generate odors as experienced at Cal 
Biomass.  The original approach was to develop an ordinance; however, further discussions with 
staff and Supervisor Benoit allowed for the development of BMPs that could be applied more 
effectively, efficiently, and timely than an ordinance. 
 
The BMPs were prepared by the Waste Management Department (WMD) in collaboration with 
Environmental Health (LEA).  The BMPs were developed primarily based on AQMD and Water 
Board rules, Title 14 language, as well as common industry practices. The goal is to apply the 
BMPs towards all composting projects that come through the County for land-use entitlements. 
The BMPs would be applied as conditions of approval for a facility’s Conditional Use Permit 
(CUP). This way the County Planning Department, as well as Code Enforcement, would have 
additional control over the operation of compost facilities. As it stands now, the LEA is the 
primary regulatory agency for compost facilities. The Water Board is involved, as well as 
AQMD, but with these BMPs, the County is added as an additional layer of oversight.  Mr. Ross 
recommended the formation of a subcommittee to review and finalize the BMPs and Financial 
Assurances (see Item 5.A). 
Simon Housman questioned if there are similar BMP programs in other counties.  Mr. Ross 
advised that he is not aware of any at this time.   



 

3 
 

 
Mr. Housman questioned if the WMD had received any industry input so far on the BMPs.  Mr. 
Ross stated that the goal of the subcommittee is to solicit industry and regulatory comments and 
perspectives.  Hans Kernkamp advised that while the BMPs were applied to the SA Recycling 
project, the WMD received some input from SA Recycling’s consultant. The comments were 
minimal and they accepted the BMPs as part of their conditions of approval for the project.    
 
Bruce Scott stated that Agriculture has been through this on many aspects.  Concerns are with 
the word ordinance, because it is a fixed set of rigid rules or guidance, and not all operations are 
located in the same geographic area. The use of BMPs is effective because it leaves a broader 
envelope of options, such as, air quality mitigation, groundwater, and surface water quality 
mitigation; whereas, in an ordinance, you are boxed in.   
 
Hans Kernkamp acknowledged that facilities vary in their operational characteristics and the goal 
is to create a master list of BMPs to apply on a site by site basis. 
  
Steven Bayard stated that a living document provides flexibility, whereas, an ordinance will 
become a dead end. 
 
B. SA Recycling Conditional Use Permit 

 

Ryan Ross presented the SA Recycling expansion project as an informational item only.  It is an 
existing recycling, chip and grind facility, located in the Coachella Valley, north of Palm Desert 
near Cathedral City and Rancho Mirage.  Currently, this facility takes asphalt, concrete, metals, 
white goods, appliances, and end of life vehicles. They are proposing an expansion from 25 acres 
to 43 acres, as well as developing a greenwaste composting operation to handle lawn and yard 
trimmings, tree clippings.  No food waste or grease will be accepted.  This facility is being 
processed through a revision to their Conditional Use Permit (CUP).  Planning staff is 
recommending the adoption of the environmental document and approval of the CUP at the 
Planning Commission meeting on February 26, 2014. 
 
Bob Magee questioned the financial assurances for this project. 
 
Ryan Ross stated that the project was conditioned to comply with the BMPs, as well as provide a 
$1 million bond.  Hans Kernkamp stated that just for comparison purposes, the bond that the 
LTF established many years ago for Cal Biomass was set for $125,000.  
 
Steve Bayard questioned the end use of the greenwaste compost.  Dan Noble said it will be used 
for things like golf courses, and kept in Riverside County. 
 

C. Coachella Valley Compost Update 

 
Ryan Ross provided an update on the Coachella Valley Compost expansion project.  Mr. Ross 
discussed the proposed project description and environmental review process that is currently 
underway, specifically the preparation of an Environmental Impact Report (EIR).   
 



 

4 
 

Steven Bayard questioned if there have been any negative comments at the public meetings 
regarding this project.  
 
Ryan Ross stated yes.  Staff originally went forward with a mitigated negative declaration.  The 
public and cities wanted more environmental studies due to not being satisfied with some of the 
outreach.  An EIR is being prepared and there will be multiple public informational meetings. 
 
Simon Housman asked if we are going to apply the same BMPs to this project. 
 
Ryan Ross explained that because the County has a lease with Burrtec for the facility, and no 
CUP is required, the BMPs will be attached as a condition of the lease.  Gary Koontz (Burrtec) 
stated that he has no issues with Financial Assurance or BMPs. 
 

D. Progress Towards 75% Diversion 

 

Hans Kernkamp stated that there was a question at the last LTF meeting regarding AB341 
implementation and what this committee is doing in that regard.  He reviewed AB 341 which 
sets a state-wide goal of 75% recycling by 2020.  A handout was distributed indicating the 
progress of Riverside County jurisdictions towards that goal.  One of the ways the State believes 
it can achieve the 75% goal is through the reduction or elimination of organics disposal.  
Assembly Bill 1826 is expected to pass and proposes  mandatory commercial organics recycling 
which will create additional pressures to site composting facilities and it is timely that this 
committee is discussing BMPs for those types of facilities. 
 
Hans Kernkamp stated he would like to request from CR&R to provide an update at some future 
date on the anaerobic digestion facility.  Alex Braicovich stated that they are still moving 
forward.  Hans Kernkamp said CalRecycle is going to provide some funding by setting aside 
approximately $30 million for these types of facilities in next year’s budget. However, this is still 
not enough money for a statewide effort and there will be significant pressure on this funding 
due to the demand. It is not necessary for the committee to take immediate action, but the 
compost subcommittee is a good start to begin thinking about these issues.   
 
Bruce Scott stated that currently the issues with agriculture are that composting is as generic as 
trash.  Because of landfill diversions, secondary unintended consequences are occurring in the 
rural areas such as greenwaste material going to a chip and grind facility and then being applied 
to land in Riverside County at excessive rates with no agronomic benefit. Property 
owners/renters are taking in tipping fees to accommodate disposal on their properties.  This has 
been brought up to the County Agricultural Office and they advised that their hands are tied due 
to composting not being regulated under their office. County Health has also advised they have 
no jurisdiction over compost or its application. 
 
Simon Housman said, therefore, in effect we have not one, but several unlicensed places where 
individuals with tractor trailers full of chipped up wood, greenwaste, construction waste, and 
drywall, are dumping within the County of Riverside as soil supplements.  
 



 

5 
 

Bruce Scott said, as we are looking at the sites doing composting, we also need to look from a 
countywide perspective as to who is going to control where the application is.  He said if it is 
quality compost there is a market for it. 
 
Simon Housman said the solution is to look at the scope of our regulatory authority to see if we 
can extend out and cover this issue as it is falling between the cracks with the other agencies.  

 
Greg Reyes advised that this is not a new problem.  Chip and grind material is not compost. They 
have had complaints for many years. Functional problems exist with the chip and grind process 
and how the material is then sold. Typically, Environmental Health gets complaints because the 
material is placed in rural areas and operation involves multiple semi-truck trips, noise, odor, and 
diesel fumes. State law allows for 1% trash by weight, and it is still considered a viable product, 
so it can be sold to the consumer. The State of California (CalRecycle) is working on regulations 
that would limit the amount applied to land at any one time to not exceed 1 foot depth.  The State 
Water Board just recently became aware of this practice and would like to outlaw it completely.  
CalRecycle understands that it is a common practice.  Currently, we have two state agencies 
battling to figure out the middle ground.  The State Water Board is currently looking at a site in 
the Anza area to issue an enforcement order to remove material spread over 12 acres.  The only 
option available to the regulators is to tell people to pick up the material and take it to the 
landfill.  Therefore, there is a gap they are aware of and do not have much control over because 
if the material meets state guidelines it is still considered a product.  The LEA has no legislative 
authority to handle this problem presently.  
 
AGENDA ITEM 5 

ACTION ITEMS 

 

A. Establishment of Compost Subcommittee 

 

The Riverside County Solid Waste Management Advisory Council (LTF) voted on the following 
recommended motion(s): 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  That the Riverside County Solid Waste Management Advisory 
Council/Local Task Force (LTF) establish a “Compost Subcommittee” to recommend Best 
Management Practices (BMPs) and develop financial assurances for implementation as 
conditions of approval on new and future compost facilities within unincorporated Riverside 
County.  
 

1.) On the motion of Ella Zanowic, seconded by Mike Gardner, and duly carried, it was 
ordered that the above matter is approved as recommended. 
 

2.) On the motion of Bruce Scott, seconded by Ella Zanowic, and duly carried, it was 
ordered that the Compost Subcommittee shall consist of seven people:  Robert Magee, 
Bruce Scott, Dan Noble, Gary Koontz, and Greg Reyes, as well as members (to be 
recruited by Staff) from the California Department of Food and Agriculture (CDFA) and 
Agriculture Commissioner’s Office. The California Regional Water Quality Control 
Board will be invited to participate. 
 



 

6 
 

The following agreed to serve on the Compost Subcommittee. 
 
1. Bruce Scott (LTF Member) 
2. Gary Koontz (Burrtec/Industry Member) 
3. Bob Magee (LTF Member) 
4. Greg Reyes (County Environmental Health) 
5. Dan Noble (Association of Compost Producers/Industry) 
6. Ron Bray (County Agriculture Commissioner)  
7. Nick Young (CDFA) 
 
Note: Cindy Li (California Regional Water Quality Control Board) agreed to participate in the 

Subcommittee discussions. 

     
AGENDA ITEM 6  

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 
Bruce Scott distributed news letters from his non-profit Western Riverside Agriculture Coalition 
Group. 
 
Amie Kinne of the El Sobrante Landfill Citizens Oversight Committee (COC) stated that the 
COC is meeting on April 2, 2014, and offered an open invitation for all those interested.  
 
Joanne Lee (Regional Water Quality Control Board) stated that the Water Board supports the 
idea of BMPs for composting and the proactive role the LTF is taking.  She said the 
Subcommittee may also want to look at how the compost BMPs will improve water quality.   
AGENDA ITEM 7  
ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 
None. 

 
AGENDA ITEM 8  

ADJOURNMENT 

 
Meeting adjourned at 2:21 p.m. 
 
HK:lg 
 
PD# 161238 






























































































































































